
CITY OF INDIAN ROCKS BEACH 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND 

APPEALS 
TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2023

 6:00 P.M. 







 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 
CALL TO ORDER 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 
ROLL CALL 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MARCH 21, 2023 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 1 of  9 

 MINUTES — MARCH 21, 2023 
 CITY OF INDIAN ROCKS BEACH 
 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Indian Rocks Beach Board of Adjustments and 
Appeals was held on TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., in the 
City Commission Chambers, 1507 Bay Palm Boulevard, Indian Rocks 
Beach, Florida. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER. Chair DeVore called the meeting to order at 6:00 

p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL: 
 
PRESENT: Chair Stewart DeVore, Vice-Chair David Watt, Board Member 
Michael A. Campbell, and Board Member Jim Labadie.  
 
OTHERS PRESENT: City Attorney Randy Mora, B.C.S. and Planning 
Consultant Hetty C. Harmon, AICP. 
 
ABSENT: Board Member Rick Alvarez and 1st Alternate Board Member 
Karen O’Donnell,  
 
VACANT POSITION: 2nd Alternate Board Member.  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: February 21, 2023 
 
MOTION MADE BY MEMBER LABADIE, SECONDED BY VICE CHAIR 
WATT, TO APPROVE THE FEBRUARY 21, 2023 BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS MINUTES AS SUBMITTED. 
UNANIMOUS APPROVAL BY ACCLAMATION. 
 
4. BOA CASE NO. 2023-03 — 2011-1ST STREET 
 Owner/Applicant:  OCF Beach LLC 
 Subject Location:  2011-1st Street, Indian Rocks Beach, 

Florida 
 Legal Description:  Lot 16, Block 54, Indian Beach Re-

Revised, as recorded in Plat Book 5, 
Page 67, of the Public Records of 
Pinellas County, Florida. 

 Parcel #:   Parcel #01-30-14-42030-054-0010. 
Variance Request:  Variance request from Sec. 110-344 

(4), of the Code of Ordinance, to 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 2 of  9 

allow for a pool to encroach 16 feet 
into the 25 feet front yard setback 
resulting in a total front yard setback 
of 9 feet to allow for a new pool. 

 
[Beginning of staff report.] 
 
SUBJECT: BOA CASE NO. 2023-03 –2011-1ST STREET 

Variance request from Sec. 110-344 (4) of the Code of 
Ordinance to allow for a pool to encroach 16 feet into the 25 
feet front yard setback resulting in a total front yard setback of 9 
feet to allow for a new pool for property located at 2011-1st 
Street, Indian Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally described as 
Lot 1, Block 54, Indian Beach Re-Revised, as recorded in Plat 
Book 5, Page 67, of the Public Records of Pinellas County, 
Florida. Parcel # 01-30-14-42030-054-0010. 

   
  OWNER:   OCF BEACH LLC  
  PROPERTY LOCATION: 2011-1st Street  
  ZONING:    RM-1 Medium-Density Residential  
 

Direction Existing Use Zoning Category 
North Residential RM-1 
East Residential RM-1 

South Residential RM-1 
West Residential RM-2 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance for pool to encroach 16 feet into the 
25-foot front yard setback for two-family residence.  
 
This house’s address is 2011-1st Street but the house actually faces 21st 
Avenue. The required front yard setback of 25 feet is on the 1st Street side.  
They are requesting to locate the pool in the front yard setback along 1st 
Street even though it appears as the side yard of the dwelling. 
 
This property is registered with the city as a vacation rental. 
 
Sec. 2-152. Variances. 
 
(a) Generally; criteria for granting variances from the terms of subpart B. 
 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 3 of  9 

(1) The board of adjustments and appeals shall make recommendations 
on and the city commission shall decide variance applications will not be 
contrary to the public interest, where, owing to special conditions, a literal 
enforcement of the provisions of subpart B will result in unnecessary and 
undue hardship. In order to recommend or decide any variance from the 
terms of subpart B, the board or the city commission shall consider each of 
the following: 
 
 a.  Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar 

to the land, structure or building involved and which are not 
applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in the same 
zoning district. The existing residence was built in 1972 and 
maintains the 25-foot front setback on 1st Street even though 
house faces 21st Avenue. 

 
b.  The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the 

actions of the applicant. 
The applicant did not create any special conditions or 
circumstances. 

 
c.  Granting the variance will not confer on the applicant any 

special privilege that is denied by subpart B to other lands, 
structures or buildings in the same zoning district. Granting the 
variance would confer special privileges to the applicant.  

 
d.  Literal interpretation of the provisions of subpart B would 

deprive other properties in the same zoning district under the 
terms of subpart B and would work unnecessary and undue 
hardship upon the applicant. The approval of this variance 
request would not deprive other owners of use and enjoyment 
of their properties.  

 
e.  The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make 

possible the reasonable use of the land, structure or building. 
This is the minimum variance to allow the owner to construct 
the pool as proposed.  

 
f.  The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general 

intent and purpose of subpart B, and such variance will not be 
injurious to the area involved or be otherwise detrimental to the 
public welfare. Granting the variance will not be in harmony with 
the general intent and purpose of subpart B. 

 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 4 of  9 

NOTICE:  A public notice was mailed by first class mail to property owners 
within 150 feet in any direction of the subject property and posted on 
subject property on March 6, 2023, (Sec. 2-149 of the Code of 
Ordinances.) 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: Correspondence was received objecting to the 
variance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the variance review criteria of 
Section 2-152, staff recommends denial of the request. 
 
[End of staff report.] 
 
City Attorney Mora read Agenda Item No. 4, BOA Case No. 2023-03, 2011-
1st Street, by title only. 
 
City Attorney Mora stated the variance application before the board is a 
quasi-judicial matter.  
 
City Attorney Mora asked if any member had conducted any ex-parte 
communications with the applicant or their agent in advance of this 
evening. All members responded negatively. 
 
City Attorney Mora asked if any member had conducted any site visit for 
the purpose of evaluating the application before them. All members 
responded negatively. 
 
City Attorney Mora duly swore in all persons planning to give testimony 
during the quasi-judicial proceeding. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon stated the applicant is requesting a variance 
request from Code Section 110-344(4) to encroach 16 feet into the 25-foot 
front yard setback to build a pool on the property located at 2011-1st 
Street. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon presented a PowerPoint Presentation 
depicting aerial views of the property, a survey, a site plan, the proposed 
pool plan, and site photos. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon explained the variance while presenting the 
PowerPoint Presentation. She stated the house is on a corner lot at 1st 
Street and 21st Avenue. The dwelling is a duplex with two driveways out 
front. 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 5 of  9 

 
Planning Consultant Harmon explained that 1st Street is considered the 
front yard with a required setback of 25 feet, and 21st Avenue is 
considered the side yard with a required setback of 7 feet. The house does 
face 21st Avenue. The applicant is requesting to locate the pool in the front 
yard along 1st Street even though it appears as the side yard of the 
dwelling. The water's edge would be 9 feet from 1st Street the property line. 
The pool would be 25 feet from 21st Avenue but 9 feet from 1st Street. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon stated staff recommended denial since the 
pool would encroach into the front setback. 
 
Chair DeVore questioned the power box and asked if a utility easement 
existed. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon stated she thinks that box is between the lot 
line and the street. 
 
Vice Chair Watt asked as a point of clarity what is the side considered on 
21st Avenue. Is 21st Avenue considered the side or the front of the house? 
Planning Consultant Harmon stated 21st Avenue is actually the front of the 
house. It is where the front doors and driveways are. It is where people 
gain access to the house. 
 
Vice Chair Watt stated that usually the setbacks on most corner lots he has 
been involved with are usually 25 feet from both directions. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon responded no — just one or the other. 
 
Vice Chair Watt stated in this case; it is off 1st Street. 
 
Vice Chair Watt clarified that this is a request for an encroachment of 16 
feet into the required 25-foot front yard setback, leaving a front yard 
setback of 9 feet.  
 
Planning Consultant Harmon responded affirmatively. 
 
Shawn Lee, OCF Beach LLC, 2011-1st Street, the applicant, stated this 
duplex is his vacation home, and he does come down 25% of his time. He 
loves Indian Rocks Beach, and it is his second home. When he purchased 
the property, it was overgrown and an eyesore for the neighborhood. Since 
then, he has put his heart and soul into making it someplace where he 
would want to stay. 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 6 of  9 

 
Mr. Lee stated he requested this variance because the city code says the 
narrowest portion of a corner lot was automatically the front yard. When the 
duplex was built, the front yard was actually the side yard. The side yard 
(21st Avenue) is where a person gains entry — where the front door and 
driveways are. There are no doors or driveways in the front of the house 
(1st Street). 
 
Mr. Lee stated if the front yard (21st Avenue) were the actual front yard of 
the house, he would be within the 7-foot side setbacks and 25-foot front 
setback. That is why he is asking for the variance. 
 
Mr. Lee stated Planning Consultant Harmon stated a pool could be built 
between his two driveways, but it would only be 5 feet. However, legally if 
he had the space, he could put the pool on 21st Avenue, and that would 
actually be a nuisance because it would be in the front yard. He was able to 
find three other properties that have the exact same layouts. They all 
requested variances and were approved — 2313-1st Street, 124-13th 
Avenue, and 2508 Bay Boulevard. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that on 1st Street, many of these lots were shaped with the 
working end, not on the legal front side. If the board looks at the street 
views for his corner, all the houses that face 1st Street have side entry off 
21st Avenue. This is just a quirk in the way the structures are laid out. 
 
Mr. Lee asked the board to look at the hardship granted by this lot's unique 
shape/layout.  
 
Vice Chair Watt asked about the other side. 
 
Mr. Lee responded there was nothing on that side, and they looked at it. 
However, there is an unimproved city alley, and there are only 14.8 feet 
from the property line, leaving 4.48 feet for a pool. 
 
Chair DeVore opened the public comment portion. 
 
Darinka Konjanovski, 2005-1st Street, stated she owns a duplex property 
directly behind Mr. Lee's that she rents year-round. However, she has 
received several complaints from her tenants because of the noise 
generated by Mr. Lee's short-term renters. She stated her tenants are 
woken up in the middle of the night because of the noise, and they have 
called the sheriff's office, and she is afraid that she would lose her long-



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 7 of  9 

term tenants because of the noise, etc. She stated it is already noisy, and a 
pool would generate more noise. 
 
Carol McGlaughlin, 115-21st Avenue, stated her home is directly across 
1st Street from the subject duplex. Ms. McGlaughlin read the following letter 
into the record: 
 
“We are property owners and/or full-time residents living on 1st Street. 
Some of us of have been here for 40-50 years. We moved to this 
community to enjoy the quiet peaceful atmosphere and to live in harmony 
with our neighbors. There is a growing trend in our community of properties 
that seem to be materializing on a regular basis. 
These issues affect the permanent residents in real time. 2011-1st Street 
was recently converted to a short-term. It has been a long-term rental since 
1972. Long-term tenants at 2005, property next door, have complained 
about noise issues and have even witnesses a physical altercations 
requiring law enforcement to intervene. 
 
We are concerned with an application for a variance and the eventual 
installation of a pool. Additional noise issues will threaten the livability for 
the surrounding permanent residents. 
 
The current owner bought the property knowing the orientation of the 
building made it impossible to add a pool. 
 
The basis for the owner’s appeal is the desire to maximize the value and 
profits of the newly acquired property. Does the new owner have a right to 
increase his profitability running a business at the expense of the 
neighbor’s right to quiet comfort? A financial increase on a return of an 
investment does not constitute or equal a hardship. 
 
If this variance is approved, it will set a precedent. It will open the 
floodgates for variance applicants that will encroach into all setback lines. 
 
Setback lines are like fences. They make good neighbors. 
 
For these reasons, we object to the approval of a variance for 2011-1st 
Street. 
 
Melissa Page, 108-20th Avenue, #A 
Jim Poehlman, 108-20th Avenue, #B 
Darinki Darinka, 2005-1st Street 
Scott Franz, 2025-1st Street, #1 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 8 of  9 

Phil Thompson, 2005-1st Street, #1 
Milica Fosif, 2005-1st Street, #3” 
Robert Page, 1080-20th Avenue 
Fred Woody, 204-21st Avenue 
Carol McGlaughlin, 115-21st Avenue 
Diane Rath, 2117-1st Street 
Patsy Sullivan, 401 Harbor Drive North 
Sue Taylor, 1215 Bayshore Boulevard” 
 
Chair Devore closed the public comment portion. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon stated there are two hot tubs in the screen 
porches on the back of the duplexes that are not on the site plan, which 
were installed about a year ago. 
 
Member Campbell stated the applicant said the remaining portion between 
his property line and the street combined with the 9 feet left of his property 
would give him 25 feet. He asked if that was correct and who actually 
owned that wide stripe of land. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon stated that it is city right-of-way, usually used 
for stormwater, sewage, utility lines, etc. She noted that it is not part of the 
applicant's property. She stated there is always a right-of-way for utilities, 
mainly in front of houses. 
 
Member Campbell stated he understood that. But he owns the easement in 
front of his house, which has a utility easement. 
 
Planning Consultant Harmon stated there is a utility easement in the 
unimproved alley for power poles. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that short-term rentals are a hot button for the city. There is 
a different venue for that, and he will abide by whatever the city 
commission does. This is the first he has heard about noise issues 
regarding his property. He has left his number with several of his 
neighbors, and he does not have a problem receiving calls in the middle of 
the night to handle issues arising from his property. 
 
Vice Mayor Watt stated there are unique properties in that city area. 
Unfortunately, people buy these properties with certain restrictions, and it is 
a big ask on a front/side yard that becomes the front yard of other 
neighbors. 
 



 

MINUTES — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023 
 
Page 9 of  9 

Chair DeVore stated 16 feet is a big front yard variance request, and he 
does not see a hardship. 
 
Member Labadie stated that granting a pool to the front yard would devalue 
the neighbors' property because when it comes time to sell, who would buy 
a property with a lot of noise going on that close to their house? He does 
not encourage people to do things that would hurt their neighbors. 
 
MOTION MADE BY MEMBER LABADIE, SECONDED BY MEMBER 
VICE CHAIR WATT, TO RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION 
DENIAL OF BOA CASE NO. 2023-03 — 2011-1ST STREET. A 
VARIANCE REQUEST FROM SEC. 110-344 (4) OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCE TO ALLOW FOR A POOL TO ENCROACH 16 FEET INTO 
THE 25 FEET FRONT YARD SETBACK RESULTING IN A TOTAL 
FRONT YARD SETBACK OF 9 FEET, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
2011-1ST STREET, INDIAN ROCKS BEACH, FLORIDA, AND LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED AS LOT 1, BLOCK 54, INDIAN BEACH RE-REVISED, AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 67, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS 
OF PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
AYES: CAMPBELL, LABADIE, WATT, DEVORE 
NAYS: NONE 
ABSENT: ALVAREZ, O’DONNELL 
 
MOTION TO RECOMMEND DENIAL TO THE CITY COMMISSION 
APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
5. OTHER BUSINESS. 
 
There will be no meeting in April. 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
MOTION MADE BY MEMBER LABADIE, SECONDED BY VICE MAYOR 
WATT, TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 6:38 P.M. UNANIMOUS 
APPROVAL BY ACCLAMATION. 
 
 
                                                                                                       
Date Approved    Stewart DeVore, Chair  
     
/DOR 
 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
BOA CASE NO. 2023-04 

449 HARBOR DRIVE SOUTH 



 
 
  1 

 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

   MEETING OF:   
     Board of Adjustment:    June 20, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: 4  
           City Commission:    July 11, 2023 
 
   ORIGINATED BY:  Hetty C. Harmon, AICP, City Planner 
 
   AUTHORIZED BY: Brently Gregg Mims, City Manager 
 

SUBJECT: BOA CASE NO. 2023-04 –449 Harbor Dr S 
Variance request from Sec.94-86 (a)(1) of the Code of 
Ordinances, of 9 feet into the required 12 foot side setback, 
resulting in a total setback of 3 feet on the northwest side 
for the installation of a new boat lift for property located at 
445 Harbor Dr S Indian Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally 
described as Lot 17 Nineteenth Addition to Re-Revised 
Map of Indian Beach recorded in Plat Book 36 Page 37 of 
the Public Records of Pinellas County, Florida 
   
Parcel # 06-30-15-42372-000-0170 

                                                             
___________________________________________________________________ 
   
OWNER   Brenda &  Barry Lanier  
LOCATION of PROPERTY:  449 Harbor Dr S  
ZONING:    S- Single- Family Residential  
 

Direction Existing Use Zoning Category 
North Residential S 
East Residential   S 

South Residential S 
West Intracoastal N/A 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The applicant is requesting a variance for a boat lift to encroach 9 ft into the 12 ft side yard 
setback for to install a boat lift. They want to remove an existing lift and install a new lift on 
side of dock. The abutting property to the north who is impacted by the reduced setback has 
no objections and signed off on the location of the new boatlift. 
 
Sec. 2-152. - Variances. 
 (a) Generally; criteria for granting variances from the terms of subpart B. 
 



 
 
  2 

(1) The board of adjustments and appeals shall make recommendations on 
and the city commission shall decide variance applications will not be contrary 
to the public interest, where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement 
of the provisions of subpart B will result in unnecessary and undue hardship. 
In order to recommend or decide any variance from the terms of subpart B, the 
board or the city commission shall consider each of the following. 

 
a. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, 
structure or building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, 
structures or buildings in the same zoning district. 

 
The property is located in an area where there the water is deep allowing 
the use the existing dock.   
 
b. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of 
the applicant. 

 
The applicant did not create any special conditions or circumstances. 

 
c. Granting the variance will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by subpart B to other lands, structures or buildings in the same 
zoning district.  
 
Granting the variance would confer special privileges to the applicant.  
 
d. Literal interpretation of the provisions of subpart B would deprive other 
properties in the same zoning district under the terms of subpart B and would 
work unnecessary and undue hardship upon the applicant. 
 
The approval of this variance request would not deprive other owners of use 
and enjoyment of their properties.  
 
e. The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, structure or building; and 
 

 This is the minimum variance to allow the owner to construct the boat lift as 
proposed.  

 
f. The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of subpart B, and such variance will not be injurious to the area 
involved or be otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
Granting the variance will not be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of subpart B. 

 
 



 
 
  3 

NOTICE:  A public notice was mailed by first class mail to property owners within 150 feet 
in any direction of the subject property and posted on subject property on July 3, 2023, (Sec. 
2-149 of the Code of Ordinances.) 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:  Adjacent neighbors at 447 and 457 Harbor Dr S have signed off on 
the setbacks. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the variance review criteria of Section 2-152, staff 
recommends denial of the request. 
 
MOTION:  
 
I move to recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL/DENIAL of BOA CASE NO. 2023-
04 –449 Harbor Dr S -Variance request from Sec.94-86 (a)(1) of the Code of Ordinances, of 9 
feet into the required 12 foot side setback, resulting in a total setback of 3 feet on the 
northwest side for the installation of a new boat lift for property located at 445 Harbor Dr S 
Indian Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally described as Lot 17 Nineteenth Addition to Re-
Revised Map of Indian Beach recorded in Plat Book 36 Page 37 of the Public Records of 
Pinellas County, Florida 
 
 



449 Harbor Dr S
BOA CASE NO. 2023-04



BOA CASE NO. 2023-04 –449 Harbor Dr S

Variance request from Sec.94-86 (a)(1) of the Code of Ordinances, 
of 9 feet into the required 12 foot side setback, resulting in a total 
setback of 3 feet on the northwest side for the installation of a 
new boat lift for property located at 445 Harbor Dr S Indian 
Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally described as Lot 17 Nineteenth 
Addition to Re-Revised Map of Indian Beach recorded in Plat 
Book 36 Page 37 of the Public Records of Pinellas County, Florida

.



449 Harbor Dr S 



449 Harbor Dr S



Survey



Proposed- Proposed Boat Lift

Proposed Boat Lift































 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
BOA CASE NO. 2023-05 

461 HARBOR DRIVE SOUTH 



 
 
  1 

 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

   MEETING OF:   
     Board of Adjustment:    July 18, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: 5  
           City Commission:    August 8, 2023 
 
   ORIGINATED BY:  Hetty C. Harmon, AICP, City Planner 
 
   AUTHORIZED BY: Brently Gregg Mims, City Manager 
 

SUBJECT: BOA CASE NO. 2023-05 –461 Harbor Dr S 
Variance request from Sec.94-86 (a)(1) of the Code of 
Ordinances, of 11 feet 3 inches into the required 12 foot side 
setback, resulting in a total setback of 9 inches on the 
northwest side for the installation of a new boat lift for 
property located at 461 Harbor Dr S Indian Rocks Beach, 
Florida, and legally described as Lot 2 Twenty Third 
Addition to Re-Revised Map of Indian Beach recorded in 
Plat Book 36 Page 37 of the Public Records of Pinellas 
County, Florida 
   
Parcel # 06-30-15-42444-000-020 

                                                             
___________________________________________________________________ 
   
OWNER   Seth & Jackie Parker  
LOCATION of PROPERTY:  461 Harbor Dr S  
ZONING:    S- Single- Family Residential  
 

Direction Existing Use Zoning Category 
North Residential S 
East Residential   S 

South Residential S 
West Intracoastal N/A 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The applicant is requesting a variance for a boat lift to encroach 11 ft 3 inches into the 12 ft 
side yard setback for to install a boat lift. This dock is not centered on the lot and is the same 
for the tow lots to the north. The abutting property to the north who is impacted by the 
reduced setback has no objections and signed off on the location of the new boatlift. 
 
Sec. 2-152. - Variances. 
 (a) Generally; criteria for granting variances from the terms of subpart B. 
 



 
 
  2 

(1) The board of adjustments and appeals shall make recommendations on 
and the city commission shall decide variance applications will not be contrary 
to the public interest, where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement 
of the provisions of subpart B will result in unnecessary and undue hardship. 
In order to recommend or decide any variance from the terms of subpart B, the 
board or the city commission shall consider each of the following. 

 
a. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, 
structure or building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, 
structures or buildings in the same zoning district. 

 
The property is located in an area where there the water is deep allowing 
the use the existing dock.   
 
b. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of 
the applicant. 

 
The applicant did not create any special conditions or circumstances. 

 
c. Granting the variance will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by subpart B to other lands, structures or buildings in the same 
zoning district.  
 
Granting the variance would confer special privileges to the applicant.  
 
d. Literal interpretation of the provisions of subpart B would deprive other 
properties in the same zoning district under the terms of subpart B and would 
work unnecessary and undue hardship upon the applicant. 
 
The approval of this variance request would not deprive other owners of use 
and enjoyment of their properties.  
 
e. The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, structure or building; and 
 

 This is the minimum variance to allow the owner to construct the boat lift as 
proposed.  

 
f. The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of subpart B, and such variance will not be injurious to the area 
involved or be otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
Granting the variance will not be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of subpart B. 

 
 



 
 
  3 

NOTICE:  A public notice was mailed by first class mail to property owners within 150 feet 
in any direction of the subject property and posted on subject property on July 3 2023, (Sec. 
2-149 of the Code of Ordinances.) 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:  Adjacent neighbors at 459 and 463 Harbor Dr S have signed off on 
the setbacks. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the variance review criteria of Section 2-152, staff 
recommends denial of the request. 
 
MOTION:  
 
I move to recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL/DENIAL of 2023-05 –461 
Harbor Dr S   Variance request from Sec.94-86 (a)(1) of the Code of Ordinances, of 11 
feet 3 inches into the required 12 foot side setback, resulting in a total setback of 9 
inches on the northwest side for the installation of a new boat lift for property located 
at 461 Harbor Dr S Indian Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally described as Lot 2 
Twenty Third Addition to Re-Revised Map of Indian Beach recorded in Plat Book 36 
Page 37 of the Public Records of Pinellas County, Florida 
 



461 Harbor Dr S
BOA CASE NO. 2023-05



BOA CASE NO. 2023-05 –461 Harbor Dr S

Variance request from Sec.94-86 (a)(1) of the Code of Ordinances, 
of 11 feet 3 inches into the required 12 foot side setback, resulting 
in a total setback of 9 inches on the northwest side for the 
installation of a new boat lift for property located at 461 Harbor 
Dr S Indian Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally described as Lot 2 
Twenty Third Addition to Re-Revised Map of Indian Beach 
recorded in Plat Book 36 Page 37 of the Public Records of Pinellas 
County, Florida

.



461 Harbor Dr S 



461 Harbor Dr S



Survey



Proposed Boat Lift

Proposed Boat Lift









dmock
Typewritten Text
2023-05

dmock
Typewritten Text
6/8/23























 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 
BOA CASE NO. 2023-06 
2209 GULF BOULEVARD 



 
 
  1 

 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

   MEETING OF:   
     Board of Adjustment:    July 18, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: 6 
           City Commission:    August 8, 2023 
 
   ORIGINATED BY:  Hetty C. Harmon, AICP, City Planner 
 
   AUTHORIZED BY: Brently Gregg Mims, City Manager 
 

SUBJECT: BOA CASE NO. 2023-06 –2209 Gulf Blvd 
Variance request from Sec.110-131(4)(f)(1) of the Code of 
Ordinances, of 15 feet into the required 25 foot front yard 
setback, resulting in a total setback of 10 feet and from 
Sec.110-344(1) of the Code of Ordinances, for an increase of 
3 ft above the required 1 foot above grade for the pool 
height resulting in a pool height of 4 ft above the adjacent 
finished grade for the installation of 2 pools/swim spas for 
property located at 2209 Gulf Blvd Indian Rocks Beach, 
Florida, and legally described as Lot 3, Block 45, RE-
Revised Map of Indian Beach Subdivision recorded in Plat 
Book 5 Page 6 of the Public Records of Pinellas County, 
Florida  
 
Parcel#:01-30-14-42030-046-0030 

  ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
OWNER   Aleksandr & Tatiyana Drigailo  
LOCATION of PROPERTY:  2209 Gulf Blvd  
ZONING:    P-1- Professional Office 
 

Direction Existing Use Zoning Category 
North Residential P-1 
East Residential   RM-2 

South Vacant  P-1 
West Residential  CT 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The applicant is requesting to install two swim/spas for each side of the duplex in the front 
yard setback.  The proposed swim/spas are reviewed as a “pool” since they are larger than 
the allowed 500 gallons for a spa.  The swim/spas are 1200 gallons. pools. Pools or spas are 
not permitted in the front yard setback.  
 
 



 
 
  2 

 
Sec. 2-152. - Variances. 
 (a) Generally; criteria for granting variances from the terms of subpart B. 
 

(1) The board of adjustments and appeals shall make recommendations on 
and the city commission shall decide variance applications will not be contrary 
to the public interest, where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement 
of the provisions of subpart B will result in unnecessary and undue hardship. 
In order to recommend or decide any variance from the terms of subpart B, the 
board or the city commission shall consider each of the following. 

 
a. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, 
structure or building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, 
structures or buildings in the same zoning district. 

 
Pinellas County required access to the property from the alley and not 
from Gulf Blvd.    
 
b. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of 
the applicant. 

 
The applicant did not create any special conditions or circumstances. 

 
c. Granting the variance will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by subpart B to other lands, structures or buildings in the same 
zoning district.  
 
Granting the variance would confer special privileges to the applicant.  
 
d. Literal interpretation of the provisions of subpart B would deprive other 
properties in the same zoning district under the terms of subpart B and would 
work unnecessary and undue hardship upon the applicant. 
 
The approval of this variance request would not deprive other owners of use 
and enjoyment of their properties.  
 
e. The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, structure or building; and 
 

 This is the minimum variance to allow the owner to install the swim/spas.   
 

f. The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of subpart B, and such variance will not be injurious to the area 
involved or be otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
Granting the variance will not be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of subpart B. 

 



 
 
  3 

 
NOTICE:  A public notice was mailed by first class mail to property owners within 150 feet 
in any direction of the subject property and posted on subject property on June 30, 2023, (Sec. 
2-149 of the Code of Ordinances.) 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the variance review criteria of Section 2-152, staff 
recommends denial of the request. 
 
MOTION:  
 
I move to recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL/DENIAL of BOA CASE NO. 2023-
06 –2209 Gulf Blvd Variance request from Sec.110-131(4)(f)(1) of the Code of Ordinances, of 
15 feet into the required 25 foot front yard setback, resulting in a total setback of 10 feet and 
from Sec.110-344(1) of the Code of Ordinances, for an increase of 3 ft above the required 1 
foot above grade for the pool height resulting in a pool height of 4 ft above the adjacent 
finished grade for the installation of 2 pools/ swim spas for property located at 2209 Gulf Blvd 
Indian Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally described as Lot 3, Block 45, RE-Revised Map of 
Indian Beach Subdivision recorded in Plat Book 5 Page 6 of the Public Records of Pinellas 
County, Florida 
 



2209 Gulf Blvd
 CASE NO. 2023-06



BOA CASE NO. 2023-06 –2209 Gulf Blvd
Variance request from Sec.110-131(4)(f)(1) of the Code of 
Ordinances, of 15 feet into the required 25 foot front yard 
setback, resulting in a total setback of 10 feet and from Sec.110-
344(1) of the Code of Ordinances, for an increase of 3 ft above the 
required 1 foot above grade for the pool height resulting in a pool 
height of 4 ft above the adjacent finished grade for the 
installation of 2 pools/ swim spas for property located at 2209 
Gulf Blvd Indian Rocks Beach, Florida, and legally described as 
Lot 3, Block 45, RE-Revised Map of Indian Beach Subdivision 
recorded in Plat Book 5 Page 6 of the Public Records of Pinellas 
County, Florida 



2209 Gulf Blvd



2209 Gulf Blvd.



Survey



Approved Site Plan



Proposed Swim/Spa locations



Proposed Swim/Spa Specifications



Proposed Swim/Spa Specifications



























 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 
OTHER BUSINESS 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 
ADJOURNMENT 


	BOA DIVIDER PAGE INTRO
	07-18-2023 BOA Agenda
	BOA DIVIDER PAGE CALL TO ORDER
	BOA DIVIDER PAGE ROLL CALL
	BOA DIVIDER PAGE APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	03-21-2023 BOA Minutes - Copy-DRAFT-
	BOA DIVIDER PAGE AGENDA 4
	BOA 2023-04  449 Harbor Dr S -6-20-23 Agenda Memo w backup
	BOA 2023-04  449  Harbor Dr S 6-20-23  PP.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	BOA 2023-04  449 Harbor Dr S -6-20-23 Agenda Memo.pdf
	MEETING OF:
	Board of Adjustment:    June 20, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: 4
	City Commission:    July 11, 2023


	BOA DIVIDER PAGE AGENDA 5
	BOA 2023-05  461 Harbor Dr S -7-18-23 Agenda Memo
	MEETING OF:
	Board of Adjustment:    July 18, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: 5
	City Commission:    August 8, 2023
	BOA 2023-05  461  Harbor Dr S 7-18-23  PP.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6


	BOA DIVIDER PAGE AGENDA 6
	BOA 2023-06 -2209 gulf Blvd-agenda memo
	MEETING OF:
	Board of Adjustment:    July 18, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: 6
	City Commission:    August 8, 2023
	BOA 2023-06  2209 Gulf Blvd  7-18-23  PP.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9


	BOA DIVIDER PAGE OTHER BUSINESS
	BOA DIVIDER PAGE ADJOURNMENT



